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This Quaker meeting house was built in 1916, to replace a much 
older wood frame structure, that was also used as an area school.

The meeting house is constructed of clay tile, with exterior walls 
veneered in brick. The basement area above grade is faced with a 
brick slightly lighter than that of the structure proper. The main 
gable is oriented north-south, with an intersecting front gable on 
the east side. A smaller gable is set asymmetrically at the outer 
corner of the north and east gable ends. The latter small gable, 
supported on square brick piers, shelters the main entrance. Behind 
it rises a short square belltower with crenellated parapet and pairs 
of elliptical arched openings on each side of the bellchamber. The 
small gable on the north side covers a secondary entrance and ves­ 
tibule.

The meeting room or sanctuary is illuminated on north, south and 
east by larger, segmental arched openings with semi-circular 
ordered arches, into which are set (in groups of three) 9/1 double 
hung sash windows flanking a slightly larger 15/1 d.h.s. window, 
the three grouped beneath a multilight transom. All other window 
openings are simply rectilinear.

The main entrance consists of a pair of panelled doors, each with 
a semi-circular light at the top. It opens into a vestibule and 
stairhall .(the sanctuary is a few steps above the level of the 
entrance) that in turn leads into the meeting room proper. This 
rpQiiEi occupies mo.st of .the .main floor area, with leetern and 
readers' platform located in the SW corner. A room off the east 
(situated beneath the east gable) was used for addifconal seating.

In the basement are a large assembly room, restrooms, classrooms 
and kitchen. A 1950's addition to the basement provided more 
classroom space across the west side.
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The Honey Creek Friends Meeting House is locally significant as an 
unusual application of the Craftsman style to an ecclesiastical 
structure. Reflections of this generally residential style are 
seen in the asymmetrical arrangement of open gables, and in the 
treatment of the wide eaves with their plain, triangular brackets. 
Only the crenellated belltower suggests the religious function of 
the building. This discretion is appropriate in a Quaker church, 
since the Society of Friends has traditionally eschewed the use of 
religious iconography in its meeting houses.

The building was erected in 1916, replacing an older (c. 1860) wood 
frame meeting house. Ernie Moon, a local builder, was responsible 
for construction. The provenance of the design is unknown, although 
church records indicate that "two architects from Marshalltown" 
presented plans for structures costing $6000 and $8000 to the 
building comittee in May, 1916. Of interest in this respect is 
the Bangor Friends 1 Church in Marshall County (adjacent to Hardin 
Co. on the southeast) that also dates from early in the 20th cen­ 
tury. In the Bangor church, the Craftsman'idiom is very diluted, 
finding expression principally in the roof shape and eaves treatment 
of the main block and entrance vestibule •*- but the similarities 
are interesting.

The Honey Creek Monthly Meeting was first organized in 1852, by a 
group of Friends originally from Yadkin County, N. Carolina. They 
arrived in Hardin County in 1851, and the preparative meeting, at 
which the Monthly Meeting was established, took place in the fall 
of the following year. The first meeting house was a log structure, 
erected in 1854. It was replaced, after a fire in 1859, with a 32 1 
x 48* building that, with various subsequent additions, was used 
until 1916. In 1967, the Honey Creek and nearby New Providence 
Monthly Meetings merged, and a new meeting house for the Honey 
Creek-New Providence Monthly Meeting was opened in 1973. The 1916 
Honey Creek meeting house is now used only for special events.
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